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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
VISHAL PRECISION STEEL TUBES AND STRIPS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VISHAL PRECISION STEEL TUBES AND STRIPS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“IND
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
/.,,,.-\?\-\\‘.‘g_:;';;'g;;:‘ggete opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to the key audit

~/ mattefs to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

Assessment of the appropriateness of the allowance
for doubtful debts.

» Trade receivables comprise 12.79% (2023-
24, 29.79%) of the total assets in the
Statement of Financial position (the
Balance Sheet). l

» The appropriateness of the allowance for
doubtful debts is subjective due to high
degree of judgement applied by the

management in  determining  the
impairment provision.
» Due to the significance of trade

receivables and the related estimation
uncertainty, this is considered as key audit
risk.

» This disclosure is set out in the Note
under Schedule 11.

Our procedure included among others:

» Evaluated the debtor impairment
methodology applied in the current year
against the requirements of Ind AS 113 in
respect of fair valuation.

» Analyzed the methodology by comparing
the prior year provision to the actual current
year write offs Assessed key ratios which
include cash collections, days outstanding
and delinquencies.

» We considered the changes in credit

strategy and assessed the impact on the

allowances for doubtful debts.

» Assessed the changes in the economy with
particular reference to the sector where the
company predominantly operates and the
impact on the collectively of the trade
receivables.

» Based on the above, we satisfied ourselves
that the management had taken reasonable
judgements that were materially supported
by the available evidence in respect of the
receivable balances. We did not encounter
any issues through these audit procedures
that indicated that provisioning in respect
of trade receivables was inappropriate.

Inventory provision:

¥» Inventories comprise of 56.22% (2023-24,
40.98%) of the total in the
statement of financial position (Balance
Sheet).

assets

» Asdiscussed in the Notes on Accounts, the
management has made provision for

Our procedure included, among others:

the
provision/valuation

» Compared

methodology applied by the management
by previous  year
methodology.

comparing to

» Evaluated the assumptions and judgements
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markdowns against inventory in respect of
damaged, unmarketable,
unserviceable and have become obsolete.

The allowance for markdown of inventory
takes into account the historic information
related to sales trends and estimated net
realizable value has been applied in
respect of the class of inventory stated
above.

applied by the management in determining
such markdown provision/valuation.
Tested and evaluated historical
information, data trends and ageing profiles
and shelf lives. '

Analyzed the provisions by performing
analytical procedures on
provisioning/valuation levels including

against historical experience.

» This requires significant management
judgement based on past experience,
inventory ageing profile as well as
different market factors impacting sale of
these products. As these factors change
each year, this required specific focus on
the current year assumptions. Further due
to the significance of the inventories and
related estimation uncertainty, this is
considered as key audit risk. Accordingly
the markdown against inventory is
considered to be a key audit matter and
disclosure is included in the Notes on
accounts.

» This disclosure is set out in the Note
under Schedule 10.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity andcash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventingand detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectivelyfor ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
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financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independenée, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the IND AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; and.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Financial Statements. Refer to Note 36 to the Financial Statements.

i) The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts or other long-term contracts
requiring provision.

iii) The company has no unpaid dividends that are required to be transferred to the Investors
Education Protection Fund.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from
any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and accordingly, reporting
on compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
for the year

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

2) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-
B”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

for Vasanth & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No.008204S

Partner
M.No.510064
ICAI UDIN: 25510064BMIAXM7680

Place: Bangalore
Date: 08" May 2025
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ANNEXURE — A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to.the Members of Vishal Precision Steel Tubes And Strips Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of VISHAL PRECISION
STEEL TUBES AND STRIPS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

W,r_-,l.li).ejigve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
9‘”“1 (f\’. .,
=l

‘
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audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
Directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference Financial Statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31* March
2025, based on the criteria for internal control with reference to Financial Statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for Vasanth & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.008204S

N | 0O g

N. Amafath Place: Bangalore
Partner Date: 08" May 2025
M.No.510064

ICAI UDIN: 25510064BMIAXM7680
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ANNEXURE — B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of Vishal Precision Steel Tubes And Strips Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the hooks
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(i)' In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant detailsof right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b)  The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were due for
verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us,no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations, conveyance deeds given to us, we report that
the title deeds comprising of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is thelessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee),
disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held
in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Few of the Property, Plant and
Equipment whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name of
the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Companyas at
March 31, 2025, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i)
(a) The Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year by the
management. In our opinion, the frequency of the inventory verification is reasonable.

| (b)  The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore, in aggregate,
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on thebasis of security
of current assets. The Quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks
or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company

(iii) During the year, the Company has not provided loans or provided advances in nature of loans or

e stood guarantee or provided security to any other entity and accordingly , the provisions of clause 3
TE o
4870
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(iii) (a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not granted any loans during the year, hence the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated is not applicable. Hence, reporting under
clause 3 {iii) (c) to (d) is not applicable.

(b) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
parties. Since, the Company has granted any loans during the year the reporting under clause
3 (iii) (e) is not applicable.

(¢) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any loans and investments made with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Thus,
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, the provisions of paragraph 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have
however not made a detailed examination of records pertaining to this to assess the accuracy.

(vii)
(a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31t March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below;

Nature of the Nature of dues | Forum where Dispute Period to which the Amount X crore
Statute is Pending Amount Relates
The Income Tax Income Tax Appellate "
Income Tax ) AY W 2022-23 0.087
Act, 1961 Tribunal
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Nature of the Nature of dues Forum where Dispute is Period to which the | Amount X crore
Statute Pending Amount Relates
Goods and Service Goods and Assistant Commissioner §
. Fy @ 2017-18 0.233
Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax of Central Tax
Goods and Service Goods and Assistant Commissioner .
) Fy M 2019-20 0.964
Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax of Central Tax

(1 AY=Assessment Year; FY= Financial Year

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrenderedor
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of
1961).

(ix)
(a) Based on information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the term loans obtained during the year have been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

(d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not

taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f)  The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

(x)
(a)  The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of theOrder
is not applicable.

(b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placementd
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting underclause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)
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during the year.

(b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c)  Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)

(@)  Inour opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with thesize
and the nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with Directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)

(a)  Inouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of theOrder is not
applicable.

(b)  In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.




A Vasanth & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit reportindicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We furtherstate that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 1350f the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicablefor the year.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comments have been included in respect of said clause
under this report.

for Vasanth & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.N0.008204S

E. Ar'nar z

Partner
M.No.510064
ICAI UDIN: 25510064BMIAXM7680

Place: Bangalore
Date: 08" May 2025




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited
PLOT NO.47, INDUSTRIAL AREA, HOSKOTE, KARNATAKA 562114
CIN : UO0Z251KA1521PTC012581 PHONE : 080 4011 7777
E MAIL ID : cs@shankarabuildpro.com
(Rupeesin Crores)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025
Particulars Note | As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
No.
I ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 40.51 42.46
(b) Right-of-use Asset 5 - 0.09
(c) Capital work-in-progress = -
(d) Financial Assels
i) Trade receivables 6 - -
ii) Loans 7 - -
i) Other financial assets 8 1.1 1.18
(e) Other non-current assels 9 - -
Total Non current assets 41.62 43.73
Current Assets
(a) Inventaries 10 144.23 95.97
(b) Financial Azsels
i) Trade receivabies 11 32.81 69.76
i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 0.03 0.0z
i) Bank balances other than (i) ahove 13 3.01 2.71
iv) Other financial assels 14 0.05 0.03
(c) Other current assets 15 34.24 21.91
(d) Current tax Asset (Net) 21 (c) 0.58 -
Total current assets 214.95 190.40
Total Assets 256.57 23413
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capilal 16 3.50 3.50
(b) Other equity 17 77.61 74.21
Total Equity 81.11 77.71
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 18 60.38 68.71
(ia) Lease Liabiiities 19 - -
(b) Provisions 20 - -
(c) Deferred tax liabiimies (Net) 21 (d) 2592 2.83
Total Non-current liabilities 62.97 71.54
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 22 50.02 1.38
(ia) Lease Liability 24 - 0.17
i) Trade payables 23
(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and
Small enterprises
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than 59.77 80.45
micro enterprises and small enterprises
i) Other financial liabilties 25 1.66 1.83
(b) Other current liabilities 26 0.96 0.47
(c) Provisions 27 0.08 0.03
(d) Current tax liabilities(Nel) 21 (b) - 0.55
Total current liabilities 112.49 84.88
Total Equity and Liabilities 256.57 234.13
Material accounting policies information- 1 to 3
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

for Vasanth & Co,,
Charlered Accountanls
Firm Regislralion No.0082045/

h‘r'nar a

Pariier
Membership No.510064

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(o

C.Ravikumar
Direclor
DIN: 01247347

/
Shf mar
Director

DIN: 01668064

,MLW

rinivas

Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025

Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited
PLOT NO.47, INDUSTRIAL AREA, HOSKOTE, KARNATAKA 562114
CIN : U00291KA1891PTC012581 PHONE : 080 4011 7777
E MAIL ID : cs@shankarabuildpro.com
(Rupess in Crores)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

Particulars Note No. For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
| Revenue from operations 28 1,054.68 633.24
Il Other Income 29 0.22 0.40
Il Total Income (I+II) 1,054.90 633.64
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 1,036.60 635.30
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 31 (25.11) (33.60)
stock-in-trade
Empioyee benefils expense 32 5.21 4.69
Finance costs 33 11.49 3.83
Depreciation and amortization expenses 4&5 4.07 4.12
Other expenses 34 18.00 12.78
Total expenses (IV) 1,050.26 627.12
V  Profit before tax (llI-IV) 4,64 6.52
VI Tax expense: 21 (a)
Current tax 1.43 1.81
Tax - earlier years 0.05 -
Deferred tax (0.24) (0.13)
1.24 1.68
VIl Profit for the period (V-VI) 3.40 4.84

VIl Other Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 0.00 0.03
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to (0.00) (0.01)
profit or loss

Total A 0.00 0.02

B Iltems that will be reclassified to profil or loss

Total B - -

Total Other Comprehensive Incomel({loss) (A+B) 0.00 0.02
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year 3.40 4.86
X Earning per equity share: [Face value Rs.100 per share] 35

Basic 97.21 138.26

Diluted 97.21 138.26

Material accounting policies information- 1 to 3

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
As per our report attached of even date—
for Vasanth & Co.,
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Registration No.008204K,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/Ig él v ( 2.
ukumar Sripdvas C.Ravikumar

N.A:rnamath

Partner
Membership No.510064

Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025

Directo Director
DIN: 01655064 DIN: 01247347

Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited
PLOT NO.47, INDUSTRIAL AREA, HOSKOTE, KARNATAKA 562114
CIN : U00281KA1931PTC012581
E MAIL ID : cs@shankarabuildpro.com

PHONE : 080 4011

7777

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

Equity Share Capital
(1) Current reporting period (refer note no 16)

Changes in
Equity Share
Capital due to
prior period
errors

Balance at the beginning
of the current reporting
period

Restated balance
at the beginning
of the current
reporting period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at the end
of the current
reporting period

3.50 =

3.50

3.50

(2) Previous reporting period (refer note no 18)

(Rupees in Crorss)

Balance at the beginning Changes in Restated balance| Changes in equity Balance at the end
of the previous reporting Equity Share | atthe beginning | share capital during of the previous
period Capital due to of the previous the previous year reporting period
prior period reporting period
errors
3.50 - 3.50 - 3.50
Other Equity (Refer Note 17)
(1) Current reporting period
Reserves and Surplus ltems of other comprehensive income |
General Reserve Retained items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss |
Earnings
Particulars Total
Remeasurements of Fair valuation of Hedging
the net defined benefit Guarantees to Reserve
plans holding company
Balance at the beginning 0.15 74.06 0.00 0.00 - 74.21
of the current reporting
period
Change in accounting policy -
due to retrospeclive
application of IND AS 116
Tolal comprehensive 3.40 0.00 - - 3.40
income for the current
year
Transfer to retained 0.00 (0.00) -
earnings
Balance at the end of the 0.15 77.46 0.00 0.00 - 77.61
current reporting period
2) Previous reporting period
Balance at the beginning 0.15 69.20 0.00 0.00 - 69.35
of the previous reporting
period
Change in accounting policy 5
due to relrospective
application of IND AS 116
Tolal comprehensive 4.84 0.02 - - 4.86
income for the previous
year
Transfer to refained 0.02 (0.02) -
eamings
Balance at the end of the 0.15 74.06 0.00 0.00 - 74.21
previous reporting period
Material accounting policies information- 1 to 3

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

for Vasanth & Co.,
Chartered Accounlanis
Firm Regisiration No.008204'

Partner
Membership No.510064

Place: Bangalore
Dale: 8th May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amwm

Sukumar Sriniy#s

Director
DIN: 01668064

Place: Bangaio

Date: 8th May 2025

e

(o

C.Ravikumar
Director
DIN: 01247347




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited
PLOT NO.47, INDUSTRIAL AREA, HOSKOTE, KARNATAKA 562114
CIN : U00291KA1991PTC012581 PHONE : 080 4011 7777
E MAIL ID : cs@shankarabuildpro.com
(Rupeesin Crores)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2025
Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 4,64 6.52

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expenses 4.07 412

Net Loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment 0.03 -

Interest income (0.19) (0.18)

Unwinding of interest income on rental deposits - -

Interest expense 11.49 3.82

Interest on lease liability-Ind As 116 - 0.01

Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back - (0.00)

Loss Allowance for doubltful trade receivables 0.13 -

Operating profit before working capital changes 20.17 14.31

Adjustments for :

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (48.26) (47.64)

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivable 36.81 (34.56)

Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Assets (12.27) (6.67)

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables (20.68) 43.69

(Decrease)/ Increase in other liabilities 0.30 (0.45)

(Decrease)/Increase in provisions 0.05 0.04

Cash flow from operations (23.88) (31.28)

Income taxes paid (2.61) (1.53)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (A) (26.49) (32.81)
Cash flow from investing activities

Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment, Investment (2.11) (0.58)

property, Intangible assets including capital Advances

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant & equipment 0.03 (0.00)

Bank deposils not considered as cash and cash (0.30) (0.10)

equivalents (net)

Interest received 0.19 0.16
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) (2.19) (0.52)
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings - "

Proceeds from/(Repayment of) long term borrowings (net) (2.82) 39.19

Repayment of Lease liability (0.15) (0.29)

Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) Current borrowings (net) 4313 (1.74)

Interest paid (11.47) (3.82)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 28.69 33.34
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents(A+B+C) 0.01 0.01
Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the period 0.02 0.01
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the period 0.03 0.02
Note: Cash and Cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement comprise
of the following (Refer Note No. 12) :-

i) Cash on Hand 0.02 0.01

ii) Balance with Banks :
- In Current Accounts 0.01 0.01
0.03 0.02

|Material accounting policies information- 1 to 3
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in IND AS -7.
Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our report attached of even dz R

for Vasanth & Co., D
PN

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registralion No.008204

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

uklimar Stiniyds C.Ravikumar

Director Director
DIN: 01868064 DIN: 01247347

Partner
Membership No.510064

Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025

Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited (‘Campany'), an ISO 9001-2000 company are
manufacturers of CRCA Strips, ERW Precision Steel Tubes and Bright Rods.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind
AS") as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (including comparatives) are duly adopted
by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on 8th May 2025 for consideration and approval by the
shareholders.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts have
been presented in Crores with two decimals, except share data and as otherwise stated.

2.3 Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under accrual basis of accounting and as
a going concern on historical cost convention or fair values as per the requirements of Ind AS prescribed
under section 133 of the Act and relevant provisions thereon.

Disclosures under Ind AS are made only in respect of material items and in respect of the items that will
be useful to the users of financial statements in making economic decisions.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an assef or a liability, the Company takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liahility at the
measurement dale. Fair value for measurement andfor disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

Current and Non-Current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal .
operating cycle or 12 months or other criteria as set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of its business, the company has ascertained its operating cycle to be 12 months
for the purpose of current and non-cuirrent classification of assets and liabilities.

2.4 Revenue recognition

2.4.1 Sale of products

Revenue is recognized on fulfilment of performance obligation. In other words, revenue is recognized
when a promise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied by transferring
control over the promised goods fo the customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received and receivable.

Revenue is recognized based on the consideration received and receivable net of discounts, rebates,
returns, taxes and duties on sales when the products are delivered to a carrier for sale, which is when
control of goods are transferred to the customer.




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
2.4.2 Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established.
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is recognised on time
proportion basis.
2.4.3 Rental income
Rental income from operating leases (of company's investment properties) is recognised on straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease, except where rentals are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation. Initial direct cost, if any, incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

2.4.4 Other Income
Other income is recognised on accrual basis provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for
qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning, net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the assst's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation /
amortisation and impairment, if any.

Disposal of property, plant and equipment
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or on retirement, when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise fram the continued use of the asset.

Gains or losses on disposais are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains / (losses).

Depreciation
Depreciation commences when the asssts are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for
assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substiluted for cost, less its estimated residual value.
Depreciation is recognized so as to wrile off the cost of Property, Plant & Equipment (other than capital
work in progress) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the
useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
Management has re-assessed the useful lives of the Property, plant and equipment and on the basis of
technical evaluation, management is of the view that useful lives assessed by management, as above,
are indicative of the estimated economic useful lives of the Property, plant and equipment. In respect of
additions to Property, plant and equipment, depreciation has been charged on pro rata basis. Individual
assets costing less than Rs.0.05 lakhs are depreciated fully during the year of purchase.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if current
estimates differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate on a prospective basis.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under
development as at the balance sheet date. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment otitstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-
current assets.

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and but not for sale in
the ordinary course of business and not used in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at
its cost, including refated transaction costs and where applicable, the borrowing costs. Subseguent
expenditure is capitalised to the assel's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefils associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized

Investment properties (except freehold land) are depreciated using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. Investment praperties generally have a useful life of 60 years. The useful life has
been determined based on technical evaluation by management.

2.7 Intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of the intangible asset. Intangible assets that are not
available for use are amortised from the date they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Software - 3 years
Brand - 3 years

The amortisation period and amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in
the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.8 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever is an indication that the assat may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that refiects current market assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assst
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generaling unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
impairment loss had previously been recognised.

2.9 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Effective April 01, 2019, the company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to
all lease contracts existing on April 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach method. The
company as a lessee has recognised the lease liability based on the remaining lease payments
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate as of the date of initial application (being 01st April,
2019). The Right-of-Use (ROU) assst has been recognised at its carrying amount as if Ind AS 116 has
besn applied since the commencement date of the lease arrangement by using the incremental
borrowing rate as at the transaction date (being O1st April, 2018). The company has not restated the
comparatives information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has been
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 01st April, 2019.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a leass
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the leass, if the use of stich option is reasonably certain.
The company makes an assessment of the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be
exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant
leasehold improvements undertaken cver the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease
and the importance of the underlying asset to the company’s operations, taking into account the location
of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term for future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. In respect of
such long term contracts, Ind AS 116 is applied.




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
Where the company is lessor
As per terms of lease agreements there is no substantial transfer of risk and reward of the property to
the lessee. Accordingly such leased out assets are treated as belonging to the company. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct cost, if any, incurred in negotiating and arranging an operaling lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the company is a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified assat
(2) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (3) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee. The company has
however elected to use the exemptions provided by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease
term ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the
underlying asset is of low value.

For these short-term and low value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease
term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever sharter.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recaverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the assat does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generaling Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost comprises of purchase price, freight, other altributable cost, applicable taxes not eligible for credit,
less rebates and discounts, which is determined on First-in, First-out ('FIFQ'") basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and selling expenses.

Stores and spares which does not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as
inventories

All items of inventories which are considered to be damaged, unmarketable or unserviceable and have
become otherwise obsolete are valued at the estimated net realizable value.
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Raw materials
Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties and include all expenses incurred in bringing
such materials to the location of its use.

Finished goods
Finished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw materials.

Stock in Trade
Stock in trade cost includes the purchase price, freight, other attributable cost, applicable taxes not
eligible for credit, less rebates and discounts.

Stores, spares and tools
Stores, spares and tools cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

2.11 Employee benefits

In respect of defined contribution plan the company makss the stipuiated contributions to provident fund,
employees’ state insurance and pension fund, in respsct of employees to the respective authorities
under which the liability of the company is limited to the extent of the contribution.

The liability for gratuity, considered as defined benefit, is determined actuarially using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately
in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit
or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised
as follows:

* service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtaiiments and settlements):

* net interest expense or income; and

* re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The relirement benefit obligation recagnised in the statement of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surpius resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present valuie of any economic benefils available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recagnised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service.

The company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonus. The company recognizes a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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212 Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences betwesn the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the correspanding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deduclible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assat to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabiiities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they are related
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respeclively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accolinting for the business combination,

The Company has exercised option to pay income tax u/s. 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1981 from
the financial year 2019-2020. Hence the provisions relating to minimum alternate tax (MAT) are not
applicable to the Company.

2.13 Foreign currency translation
The functional currency of the company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment
in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the enlity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currenciss are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the pariod in
which they arise except for:

+ exchange differences on foreign currency barrowings relating to assets under construction for future
produclive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency barrowings;

+ exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to oceur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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2.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outfiow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be
required to settle such an obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance shest date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash fiows estimated to setile the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seiile a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an assat if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are ot recognized but are disclosed in the notes.

2.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax atfributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares,
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any
atiributable taxes) relating to the dilutive patential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares
including the treasury shares held by the company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the
employees.

2.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capilalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred under
finance costs. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

2.17 Non-current assets held for sale / distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/ distribution to owners if
their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale / distribution rather than through
continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale/ distribution will be made or that the decision to sell/ distribute will be
withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale/distribution and it is expected to be completed
within one year from the date of classification.

The criteria for held for sale/ distribution classification is regarded as met only when the assets or
disposal group is available for immediate sale/ distribution in its present condition, subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales/ distribution of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale/
distribution is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The group treats sale/
distribution of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

* The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset {or disposal group);

* An aclive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated,;

* The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reascnable in relation
to its current fair value;

* The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification; and
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* Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell/ distribute. Asssts and liabilities
classified as held for sale/ distribution are pressnted separately in the balance sheet. Property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribution to owners are not
depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

* Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

* Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations

« Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of conlinuing operations and are presanted as a
single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

2.18 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any conlract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets (Other than Trade receivables) and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of
Profit and Loss ('FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables are recognised when they are originated.

Trade payables are in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services availed in
the normal course of business. They are recognised at their transaction and servicas availed value if the
transaction do not contain significant financing companent.

a) Financial Assets
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets (other than Trade receivables ) are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value
through Statement of Profit or Loss (‘FVTPLY)) are added to the fair value of the financial assets, on
initial recognition. Transaction cost direcily attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables are recognised at their transaction value as the same do not contain significant
financing camponent

(i) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Debt instruments at amortized cost

* Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

« Deblinstruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

* Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if bath the following conditions are met:
* The asset is held within a business modsl whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outsianding. :
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effeclive interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,

Debt instrument at FVTOCI:

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business madel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

* The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI categary are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL Debt instruments included
within the FVTPL categery are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL. However, such election is chosen only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition incansistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

(iii) De-recognition of financial assets
Afinancial asset is de-recognised only when:;
a. The entity has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

b. The enlity retains the contractual rights to receive the cash fiows of the financial asset, but expects a
contractual obligation to pay the cash fiows to ore or more recipients.

Where enlity has transferred an asset, the Group examines and assesses whether it has transferred
substantially all risk and rewards of ownership of financial asset. In stich cases, financial asset is de-
recognised. Where entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of financial
asset, such financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial assst is de-recognised, if the Group has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial assat.

(iv) Investment in subsidiaries:

The company's investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries are accounted for at cost as per Ind AS
27, including adjustment for fair value of obligations, if any, in relation to such subsidiaries.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction cost (if any) that is attributable
to the acquisition of the financial liabiiities which is also adjusted.
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(ii) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Loans and borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and bor rowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and lossas are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

Trade and other payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company which are unpaid at
the end of the reporting period. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities when the
payment is due within a period of 12 months from the end of the reporting period. For all trade and other
payabies classified as current, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments. Other payables falling due after 12 months from the end of the reporting period are
presented as non-current liabilities and are measured at amortised cost unless designated at fair value
through profit and loss at the inception.

The Company enters into deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby lenders such as
banks and other financial institutions make payments to supplier's banks for purchase of raw materials,
The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date. These are
normally settled up to 90 days. These arrangements for raw materials are recognized as Acceplances
i.e. trade payables and are included in total outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because, the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantse. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

All interest-related charges and, if appiicahle, changss in an instrument's fair value that are reported in
profit or loss are included within finance costs or finance income.

Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recagnition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading or designated as at FVTPL are recognized in the profit or loss,

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
Modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shest if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
seltle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settie the liahilities simultaneously,

d) Impairment of Financial assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance shest whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss
allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade
receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial asssts, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-manth expected credit losses or at an amount equal
to the life time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased sigsi
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e) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability which
are accessibie to the Company.

The fair value of an assst or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non financial assst takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assats or liabilities,
* Level 2. Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly obsarvable, or

* Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unohbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

f) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for at FVTPL except for derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in cash flow hedge relationships, which require a specific accounting treatment. To
qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must mest several strict conditions with respect to
documentation, probability of occurrence of the hedged transaction and hedge effectiveness. These
arrangements have been entered into to mitigate currency exchange risk arising on account of
repayment of foreign currency term loan and interest thereon. For the reporting periods under review,
the company has not designated any forward currency contracts as hedging instruments.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents and cash flow statement

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash flows are reparted using the indirect method, whereby profil/ (loss) before extraordinary items and
tax is appropriately classified for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future receipts or payments. In cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, balances with banks in current accounts and other short- term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2,20 Dividend on ordinary shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the
company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the Companies Act, 2013, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
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2.21 Segment reporting
An operaling segment is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities
from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses and for which discrete financial information is
available. The operating segments are based on the enlity’s internal reporting structure and the manner
in which operating results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

2.22 Recent Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") nolifies new standards or amendment to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance contracts and
amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relaling to sale and leaseback transactions applicable from April
01,2024. The company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation opines that it
does not have any impact in its financial statements.

3. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the Company is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and
liabiiities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are cansidered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The eslimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the periad in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment once a year. Such lives are
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic
lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operaling costs.
Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the
Management.

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired, requires an estimate in the value in
use of investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the future commodity
prices, capacity utilization of plants, operating margins, discount rates and other factors of the underlying
businesses / operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to
changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the cairying value of investments.

(iii) Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can reasonably be estimated. The
timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be
subject to change. The amounts are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

(iv) Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabiiities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the Company. Potential liabiiities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to
quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
recognized.

(v) Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where passible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. .
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Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Rupees in Crores)

6 TRADE RECEIVABLES ( NON CURRENT)

Parldculars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024

Long-term trade receivables
Considered Good = : )
Credit impaired i =

Less: Allowance for doubtful debls (Expectad credit loss
allowance) *

Total - -
Of the above, debls due by directors or other officers of
the company or any of them either severally or jointly with
any olher person or debls due by firms or private Nil Nil
companies respeclively in which any director is a partner
or a ditector or a member amount to

* Movement in loss allowance of trade receivables
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024

Opening Baiance - -
Amount writlen off - «
Credit loss allowance - -
Closing Balance - .

Trade Receivables (Non Current) ageing schedule as at 31-03-2025

Outstanding from due date of payment

6 More
Less than 6 months { 1-2 2-3 |than3
Particulars Not Due months 1year |years| years | years | Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - = N -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk = E - - - .
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considersd good - - - = = = -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk < = = - - -
vi) Disputed Trade Receivabies — credit impairad - - N - - - .

Total a . - = 3 = .

Trade Receivables (Non Current) ageing schedule as at 31-03-2024

Outstanding from due date of payment

6
Less than 6 months { 1-2 2-3

Particulars Not Due months 1year |years| years |than 3{ Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered gaod - - - - - - -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk i - - . - - .
() Undisputed Trade Recelvables — credit impalrad - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables—considered good s - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk - - = = = < .
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — cradit impaired - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - -

-~

LOANS (NON-CURRENT)
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Unsecured, considered good:

(a) Employee advances & =

Total = -




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Unsecured, considered good:

Security Deposit 0.99 1.06

Deposit with Suppliers 0.12 0.12

Total 1.11 1.18
9 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Unsecured, Considered good:

Capital advances - -

Total - -
10 INVENTORIES

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Inventories:(at lower of cost and Net realisable value)

Raw Malerials 58.56 3582
Finished goods 81.03 5592
Stores and sparas 4.64 423
Total 144.23 95.97

Inventories have been hypothecated as security against cerlain bank b

22)

11 TRADE RECEIVABLE (CURRENT)

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024

Unsecured:

Trade receivables Considered Good 31.94 69.40
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (Expected credit loss (0.00) (0.00)
allowance) *

Total-A 31.94 69.40
Trade receivables with signficant increase in credit risk 1.24 0.60
Less: Allowance for doubtful debis (Expected credit loss (0.37) (0.24)
allowance) *

Total-B 0.87 0.36
Total (A+B) 32.81 69.76

* Movement in loss allowance of trade recsivables

(Rupees in Crores)

orrowings of the company as at 31st March 2025 (Refer nole

Fariaiam As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Cpening Balance 0.24 0.24
Amount writlen off - =
Credit loss allowance 0.13 -
Closing Balance 0.37 0.24
Trade Receivables (Current) ageing schedule as at 31-03-2025

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
6 More
Less than 6 months { 1-2 2-3 |than3

Particulars Not Due months 1year  years| years | years | Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 31.10 0.15 0.69 - - - 31.94
(i) Undispuited Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk ) ) - | 9e0) o07| ‘020 087
(ili) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - = - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - = & - =
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - ) ) ) ) . )
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - -

Total 31.10 0.15




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes and Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Rupess in Crores)

Trade Receivables (Current) ageing schedule as at 31-03-2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
6 More
Less than 6 months { 1-2 2-3 (than3
Particulars Not Due months 1 year |years| years | years | Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considerad good 64.48 4.74 0.18 - - - 69.40
(i.l? L_lndnspt_:ted_'i’racig Recelwe_zbles —which have ) ) ) 0.04 0.12 0.20 036
significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant ) )
increase in credit risk - } ) ) -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 64.48 4.74 018! 0.04| 0142| 0.20] 69.76

The credit period on goods sold ranges from 30 to 60 days without security. No interest is charged on overdue trade receivabies. The
company ciassifies trade receivable due for more than one year as trade receivable with significant increase in credit risk. Trade
receivable with credit impairment is identified on czs2 to czse basis.

In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expecled credit loss allowance for trade receivables hased on a provision matrix. The provision malrix takes into account historical
credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of
the receivables that are due and rates usad in the provision matrix.

Before accepling any new cuslomer, the company evaiuales the financial soundness, business opportunities, credit references el
of the new cuslomer and defines credit limit and credit period. The credit limit and the credit period are reviewed at periodical
intervals.

The Company does not generally hold any collaleral or other credit enhancements over thess balances nor does it have a legal right
of offsel against any amounls owed by the Company to the counterparty.

Trade receivables have been offered as collateral towards borrowings (refer security note below Nate 22)

in determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting periad. The concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Balances with banks :

In current account 0.01 0.01
Cash on hand 0.02 0.01
Total 0.03 0.02
13 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Fixed Deposit 3.01 2.71
Total 3.01 2.71
14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Unsecured, considered good
taff Advance 0.04 0.03
Interest Receivable 0.01 -
Rent Receivable 0.00 0.00
Total 0.05 0.03

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Unsecured, considered good
Advances other than capital advances:

Advances for purchases 2493 15.25
Prepaymenls and olhers 0.24 0.16
Balances with governiment authorities 9.07 6.50 S EEL 2
3424 291/ &
&) *
Ly w
o —i
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Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Rupess in Crores)
16 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
No.of Shares Amount No.of Shares Amount
Authorised:
Equity shares of Rs.100/- each 5,00,000 5.00 5,00,000 5.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid: 3,50,000 3.50 3,560,000 3.50
a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and equity share capital
Paiticalass As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
No.of Shares Amount No.of Shares Amount

Balance as at the beginning of the
year 3,50,000 3.50 3,50,000 3.50
Changes in equity share capital - = = -

during the year
Balance as at the end of the year 3,50,000 3.50 3,50,000 3.50

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares and terms of conversion of other securities into
equity,
The company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.100 each. Each share holder is eligible
for one vote per share held and carry a right to dividend. In the event of liguidalion, the equity share holders
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(i) There are no restrictions attached to equity shares

c) Details of Shares held by holding Company:
Name of Shareholder As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
No. of Shares | % of Holding | No. of Shares | % of Holding

Shankara Building Products Limited * 3,50,000 100.00% 3,50,000 100.00%
* Including Nominee shares

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
Name of Shareholder As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
No. of Shares | % of Holding | No. of Shares | % of Holding

Shankara Building Products Limited 3,50,000 100.00% 3,50,000 100.00%

e) Shares held by promoters at the end of 31-03-2025

%of total |% Change during

Promoter name No. of Shares
shares the year
Shankara Building Products Limited 3,650,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total 3,50,000 100.00% 0.00%

Shares held by promoters at the end of 31-03-2024

%of total |% Change during

Promoter name No. of Shares
shares the year
Shankara Building Products Limited 3,50,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total 3,50,000 100.00% 0.00%

f) Forthe period of five years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet :
Aggregate number & class of shares allotted by the company as fully paid up pursuance Nil
to contracts without receipt of cash
Aggregate number & class of shares bought back by the company
Aggregate number & class of shares allatted by the company as fully paid up by way of

”-ﬂ-bq’? shares

s\t
i




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

(Rupees in Crores)

17 OTHER EQUITY
Particulars As at 31-03-2025| As at 31-03-2024
General Reserve 0.156 0.15
Retained earnings 77.46 74.06
Total 77.61 74.21

General Reserve
General Reserve is an accumulation of retained earnings of the Company, apart from the balance in
the statement of profit and loss which can be ufilised for meeting future obligations.

18 BORROWINGS (NON - CURRENT)

Particulars As at 31-03-2025| As at 31-03-2024
TERM LOANS:
From banks** - 0.00
UNSECURED
Loans from related party * 60.38 68.71
Total 60.38 68.71

* The term shall be for 60 months from the date of loan disbursement. There will be a moratorium of
one year on the principal amount. From the second year onwards the Borrower will pay a sum of Rs
0.015 Crores per month till the end of the tenure of the loan. Interest of 7% shall be calculated
accordingly. The balance loan amount may be extended as agreed by the Lender and Borrower with
necessary diligence as thought fit at that time. However, the Lender has the right to call the entire loan
amount giving 60 days notice to the Barrower.

* The term shall be for 24 months from the date of loan disbursement. The Borrower will pay a sum
of Rs 0.02 Crores per month till 31st October 2024 and thereafter will pay a sum of Rs.0.485 crores to
the end of the tenure of the loan. interest of 7% shall be calculated accordingly. The balance loan
amount may be extended as agreed by the Lender and Borrower with necessary diligence as thought
fit at that time.However, the Lender has the right to call the entire loan amount giving 60 days notice
to the Borrower.

**Vehicle loan - first charge on the vehicle. Loan outstanding Rs.Nil (PY Rs.0.07 Crores) repayable in
8 months instaiments till 15th September 2024 - rate of interest 8.39 % p.a. (PY Current maturities is
Rs. 0.07 Crores and Non current amount is Rs.Nil) .

18 LEASE LIABILITY-NON CURRENT

20

aNTH e

D!
N\

,'.":‘; REG. No.
0082045

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Lease liability

Total

PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Financial guarantee liability *

Total

* Movement in Provision for financial guarantee liability

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Provision made during the year
Less: Provision utilised/ reversed during the year

Balance at the end of the year
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Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

(Rupees in Crores)
INCOME TAXES
Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. Each entity is assessad to tax on taxable profits
determined for each fiscal year beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31,

Incomes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in India adjusted in
accordance with the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. Such adjustments generally relate to depreciation of fixed assets,
disallowances of certain provisions and accruals, the set-off of tax losses and depreciation carried forward and retirement
benefit costs.

The Company has opted to exercise the option permitied under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the
Company has made a provision for Income tax and re-measured its deferred tax at the rate prescribed by the section.Income
tax is charged at 22% plus surcharge of 10% plus health and education cess of 4%.

Income tax expenses

For the year ended
As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024

Particulars

Current tax:

Current tax 1.43 1.81

Tax pertaining to eariier years 0.05 -

Deferred tax (0.24) (0.13)
Total 1.24 1.68

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised
income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

Barticiing For the year ended
As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024

Profit before tax 4.64 6.52
Enacled tax rate in India 25.168% 25.168%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 1.17 1.64
Tax impact on account of
Depreciation under Income-tax Act
Provision for doubful debts disallowed
Expenses allowed only on payment basis
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profils 0.0z 0.04
Deductions allowable under tax laws (0.00) (0.00)
Others
Tota' 1 .1 9 1 .68
Effective income tax rate 25.58% 25.85%
Tax expenses:
- Current tax 1.43 1.81
- Deferred tax (0.24) (0.13)
Total tax 1.19 1.68
Add: Tax for earlier years 0.05 -
Total tax expenses reported for the year 1.24 1.68

Current tax Liabilities

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Current tax Liabilities (Net) - 0.55
Current tax Assets

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
Current tax Asset (Net) 0.58 -
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Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset)

(Rupees in Crores)

The majority of the deferred tax balance represants differential rates of depreciation for property plant and equipment under
income tax act and disallowance of certain expendiiure under income tax act. Significant components of deferred tax
ments are as follows:

assets/(liabilities) recognized in the financial state

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
Deferred Tax Liability:
Opening adjustments as per IndAs 116 (0.01) (0.01)
On account of accelerated depreciation for tax purpose 2.43 2.66
Deferred Tax Asset:
Expenses allowed on payment basis 0.10 0.10
Allowance for doubltiul recsivables and advances 0.06 0.09
IND AS Adjustments 0.01 (0.01)
Deferred Tax Asset/Liabilities (Net) 2.59 2.83
Deferred tax balance (Asset)/Liability in As at 31-03- Recognised/ Recognised in/ As at
relation to 2025 (reversed) through | reclassified from | 31-03-2024
profit and loss other
comprehensive
income
Depreciation under income tax act 2.43 (0.23) 2.66
Provision for employee benefit 0.10 (0.00) 0.00 0.10
Allowance for doubtful receivables and advances (0.03)
0.06 0.09
IND AS Adjustments 0.01 0.02 (0.01)
Opeing adjustments as per Ind AS 116 (0.01) - (0.01)
Total 2.59 (0.24) 0.00 2.33
Deferred tax balance (Asset)/Liabiiity in As at 31-03- Recognised/ Recognised in/ As at
relation to 2024 (reversed) through | reclassified from | 31-03-2023
profit and loss other
comprehensive
income
Depreciation under income tax act 2.66 (0.15) 2.81
Provision for employee benefit 0.10 (0.01) 0.01 0.10
Allowance for doubtful receivables and advances 0.00
0.09 0.09
IND AS Adjustments (0.01) 0.03 (0.04)
Opeing adjustmenls as per Ind AS 116 (0.01) - (0.01)
Total 2.83 (0.13) 0.01 2.95




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

(Rupeesin Crores)

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
SECURED
(a) Loans repayable on demand from bariks 4402 0.89
(b) Current malurities of long-term debt - 0.07
UNSECURED
Loans from related party -Current maturities of 6.00 0.42
long-term debt
Total Borrowings 50.02 1.38

Working capital loans are repayable on demand and caries interest

_
@
SS

9% to 12.85% p.a. and secured by:

0.07

-5.58

a) First pari passu floaling charge on the exisiing and fulure cuirrent assets & certain fixed assats of the company .

b) Guarantee by Managing Director & Corporale guaraniee by holding comparny.

Other disclosures (for both current and non-current borrowings)

(i) Quarterly relurns or slalements of current assats filed by the campany with banks are in agreement with books of accounls
(i)The campany has adhered to debt repayment and interest service obligations on time. The company has not been declared as wilful

defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

()All applicable cases where registration of charges or salisfaction is required to be filed with Registrar of Companies have been filed.

No registralion or salisfaclion is pending as at the 31.03.2025

(iv) Term loans were applied for the purposes for which they were oblained. Further short term loans availed have not been utilised for

long term purposes

Reconciliation of cashflows from financing activities

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Cash and cash equivalents 0.03 0.02
Current borrowings (44.02) (0.89)
Non-current borrowings (66.38) (69.20)
Net Debt (110.37) (70.07)
Other Assets Liabilities from financing
3 activities
Particulars Cash and cash Current Non-current Total
equivalents borrowings borrowings
Net debt as at April 01, 2023 0.01 (2.63) (30.01)] (32.63)
Net cashfiows 0.01 0.01
Proceeds from borrowings 1.74 1.74
Repayment of borrowings (39.19)] (39.19)
Foreign exchange adjustments -
Other non-cash movement -
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 0.02 (0.89) (69.20)] (70.07)
Net debt as at April 01, 2024 0.02 (0.89) (69.20)| (70.07)
Net cashflows 0.01 0.01
Proceeds from borrowings (43.13) (43.13)
Repayment of borrowings 2.82 2.82
Foreign exchange adjusiments -
Other non-cash movement -
Net debt as at March 31, 2025 0.03 (44.02) (66.38)] (110.37)

23 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises (MSME) [refer note no 39]

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

59.77

80.45

Total Trade Payables

59.77

80.45




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

(Rupees in Crores)
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31-03-2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total

payment
Particulars Not Due Lessthan 1year | 1-2years 2-3 More
- years than 3
years
(i MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others 59.82 0.15 - - - 59.77
(i) Disputed duss — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 59.62 0.15 - - - 59.77

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31-03-2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total

payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 More
years than 3
years
(i) MSME - B - - - -
(i) Others 80.32 0.13 - - - 80.45
() Disputed duss — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 80.32 0.13 - - - 80.45
24 LEASE LIABILITY- CURRENT
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Lease liability - 0.17
Total Other Current liabilities - 0.17
25 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Interest payable
-Inlerest accrued but not due 0.02 -
-Interest accrued and due = -
Employee Benefits payable 0.55 0.54
Other expense payable 1.09 1.29
Total Other Financial Liabilities 1.66 1.83
26 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Advances received from customer 0.91 0.21
Statutory dues 0.05 0.26
Total Other Current liabilities 0.96 0.47
27 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer nole 41) * 0.07 0.02
Compenisated absences ** 0.01 0.01
Total Provisions 0.08 0.03
* Movement in Provision for Employee benefils - Gratuity
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.02 0.00
Add: Provision made during the year 0.07 0.02
Less: Provision utilised/ reversed during the year 0.02 -
Balance at the end of the year 0.07 0.02
™ Movement of provision for compensated absences
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.01 0.02
Add: Provision made during the year 0.05

Less: Provision utilised/ reversed during the year 0.05 0.01
B_afance at the end of the year 0.01 0.01
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Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Rupees in Crores)

For the Year | Forthe Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Sale of Steel, Steel Tube & Pipes and Strips 1,045.59 624.59
Other Operating Revenues - Sale of scrap 9.09 8.65
Total 1,054.68 633.24
OTHER INCOME
For the Year | For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Income 0.19 0.16
Profit on sale of Property, plant & equipment 0.00 -
Rent Received 0.03 0.03
Miscellaneous income 0.00 0.21
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back - 0.00
Total 0.22 0.40

COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening stock of raw materials 35.82 21.88
Add: Purchases 1,059.34 649.24
1,095.16 671.12
Less: Closing stock of raw materials (58.56) (35.82)
Total 1,036.60 635.30
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
For the Year | For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Closing stock of Finished Goods (81.03) (55.92)
Opening stock of Finished Goads 55.92 22.32
Total (25.11) (33.60)
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars For the Year | For the Year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Salaries and Wages 4.51 412
Contribution for:
Provident fund 0.25 0.24
Employee state insurance 0.00 0.01
Gratuity (Refer note 41) 0.08 0.07
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.37 0.24
5.21 4.69
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Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

(Rupees in Crores)

'FINANCE COST

For the Year | For the Year

Particulars ended ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Expense on borrowings 11.24 3.79
Other borrowing costs 0.25 0.03
Interest on lease liability-Ind As 116 - 0.01
Total 11.49 3.83
OTHER EXPENSES

For the Year | For the Year

Particulars ended ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Power & Fuel 3.55 3.54
Consumption of Stores & Spares 3.99 3.37
Rent 0.17 0.02
Repairs and Maintenance

- Others Assets 0.47 0.14

Insurance 0.28 0.23
Rates & Taxes 0.70 0.12
Travelling Expenses 0.38 0.19
Payment to Auditors (Refer note below)** 0.03 0.03
Professional fees 0.09 0.22
Directors sitting fees 0.01 0.01
Communication Expenses 0.04 0.02
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 0.06 0.00
Loss Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 0.13 -
Labour Charges 2.60 2.01
Freight Charges 3.35 1.38
Commission Charges 0.14 0.01
Expenses on Corporate Guarantee 0.00 0.46
Sub contracting Charges 1.56 0.39
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (refer note 45) 0.08 0.06
Miscellaneous Expenses* 0.37 0.59
Total 18.00 12.78

*Under this head, there is no expenditure which is in excess of 1% of revenue from

operations or Rs. 10 lakhs, whichever is higher

** Note : Breakup for Payment to Auditors is as under: (Excluding service tax / GST)

For the Year | For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) For Statutory Audit 0.02 0.02
b) For Tax Audit 0.01 0.01
c) Out of Pocket Expenses 0.00
0.03
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35 Earnings Per Share

(Rupees in Crores)

For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Basic & Diluted
A. Profit altributable to equity shareholders 3.40 4.84
B. Weighted average number of equity shares (in Nos.) 3,50,000 3,50,000
C. Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs.) [A/B] 97.21 138.26
Face value per share (Rs)) 100.00 100.00

The company does not have any potential equily shares. Accordingly, basic and diluted EPS would remain the

same.

36 Contingent liabilities:

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
(i) Income tax* 0.09 -
(if) Goods and Services tax*,** 1.19 -
Total 1.28 -

*The above disputes are pending in appeal before various forums in the respective department. Outflows, if any,
arising out of these claims would depend upon the adjudication of appellate authorities and the Group's rights for

further appeals.

**Amount remilted against disputed liabifity -Goods and Service tax-Rs.0.11 crores

37 Commitments

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Eslimated value of capital commitments towards machinery (Net of ) )
advances)
Total - -

38 Operating lease
As lessor:
Leasing Arrangements:

The investment properties are leasad to tenants under operaling leases with rentals payahle monthly.
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties are as follows:

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Within one year 0.04 0.04
Between 1 and 2 years 0.04 0.04
Between 2 and 3 years 0.04 0.04
Between 3 and 4 years - -
Between 4 and 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Total 0.12 0.12
As lessee:

Various Buildings have been taken on cperating lease with lease term between 11 and 60 months for office/factory
premises and residential accommaodation of employees, which are renewable on a periodic basis by mutual
consent of both parties. All the operating leases are cancellable by either parties for any reason by giving a prior
notice before 1 to 3 months. There is no resiriction imposead by lease arrangements, such as those concerning

dividends, additional debts.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lezse term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with
any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably
certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.

For the short-term and low value leas=s, the company recognizes the lease payments as an ope

_a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

afing expense on
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Accounting for Leases under IND AS 116

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Lease liabilities

Gross carrying amount of right of use assets as on 01/04/2024 0.91 0.95
Depreciation charged for the Right-of-use asssts 0.07 0.16
Interest expense on lease liability - 0.01
The rental expense relaling to short-term lezsas for which IND AS 116

has not been applied 0.17 0.02
Additions to Right-of-use assets during the current year - -
Deletions to Right-of-use assets during the current year 0.91 0.04
Gross carrying amount of right of use assets as on 31/03/2025 - 0.91

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Malurity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Non-current

Not later than one year - 0.14
Later than one year and not more than five years - -
More than five years - -
Total undiscounted laibilities - 0.14
Lease liabilities

Current - 0.17

39 Additional Information

a) Disciostire required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED') Act, 2006

Particulars

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

(i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

(ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of
2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

() the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year and

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such dale when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

SN @ o

G EG
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40 Assets hypothecated as security:

(Rupees in Crores)

The carrying amounts of assets hypothecated as security for current and non-current borrowings

are:

Particulars

Note No

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Current Assets
A) Financial assets

(i) First Charge-Trade receivahles
(i) Floating Charge

B) Non Financial assets

(i) First Charge-Inventories

(ii) Floating Charge

11

10

32.81

144.23

69.76

95.97

Total current assets hypothecated as
security

177.04

165.73

Non Current Assets
A) Financial assets

(f) First Charge

(ii) Floating Charge

B) Non Financial assets
(i) First Charge

- Vehicle

- Land and Building

- Plant and Machinery

(i) Floating Charge

16.03
24.04

0.32
16.49
25.46

Total non-current assets hypothecated as
security

40.07

Total assets hypothecated as security

217.11




41

Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Rupess in Crores)
Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as an expense for the year is as under:

For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund (includes pension fund) 0.25 0.24
Employer's Coniribution to Employee Stale Insurance 0.00 0.01

Defined benefit plan

(i) Gratuity

The Company has funded the gratuity liability ascertained on actuarial basis, wherein every employee who has completed five
years or more of service is enlilled to gratuity on relirement or resignalion or death calculated at 15 days salary for each
completed year of service, subject to a maximum of Rs. 20 lacs per employee. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under
The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years.

The pians in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

Investment risk: The present value of the defined bensfit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to government bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the pian liability, however, this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

There are no other post-retirement benefils provided to empioyees,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
31 March 2025 by M/S Ankolekar & Co., Actuaries and Consullants. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Gratuity (Funded)

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening Balance 1.19 1.10
Current Service Cost 0.07 0.07
Past Service Cost = =
Interest Cost 0.08 0.08
Actuarial Loss/{Gain) on obligation 0.01 (0.02)
Benefils paid {0.04) (0.04)
Tranafer In/(Qut) - 0.00
Closing Balance 1.31 1.19
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets

Opening Balance 1.17 1.12
Transfer In/ (Out) . =
Expected Return on Plan assets less |oss on investments 0.08 0.08
Actuarial (Loss)/Gain on Plan Asssis 0.01 0.01
Employers' Contribution 0.02 -
Benefits paid (0.04)
Closing Balance 1.24
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet (refer note 27) 0.07
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(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Expenses during the year
Current Service cost 0.07 0.07
Past Service cost - -
Interest cost 0.08 0.08
Expected Return on Plan assets (0.08) (0.08)
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in statement of 0.08 0.07
profit & loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
- Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on defined benefit obligation 0.01 (0.02)
- Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on Plan Assets (0.01) (0.01)
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in other (0.00) (0.03)
comprehensive income
Actual Return on plan assets 0.09 0.09
Break up of Plan Assets:
i) Equity instruments = 3
i) Debt instruments - -
iii) Investment Funds with Insurance Company 100% 100%
Of which, Unit Linked 0% 0%
Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked 100% 100%
iv) Asset-backed securities - -
v) Structured debt - -
Note: None of the assets carry a quoted market price in an aclive market or represent the enlity’s own transferable
financial instruments or are property cccupied by the entity.
Principal actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024
Discount Rate 6.40% 7.00%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.20%
Allrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Indian assured lives mortalty 2012-201
Mortality rate during employment Ult.
Experience adjustments
Particulars 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Defined Benefit Obligation 1.3 1.19 1.10 1.47 1.29
Plan Assets 1.24 147 1.12 1.52 1.57
Surplus / (Deficil) (0.07) (0.02) 0.02 0.05 0.18
Experience Adjustments
on Plan Liabilities — 0.04 0.04 (0.086) 0.04 (0.13)

(Loss)/Gain

Experience Adjustments

on Plan Assels —
Loss)Gain

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 0.07 crores (previous year Rs.0.02 crores ) to its gratuity plan for the next year.

In assessing the Company's post retirement liabilities, the Company manitors mortality assumptions and uses up-to date

mortality tables, the base being the Indian azsured lives mortality (2006-08) ultimate.

Expected return on plan assets is based on expeciation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the
nsidering several applicable factors such as the composition of plan

fund during the estimated term of

the obligations after co

assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc.

The estimates of future saiary increase, considersd in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as sup

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the

estimated term of the obligations.

Effective March 29, 2018, the Government of India has natified the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018 to raise the
statutory ceiling on gratuity benefit payable to each employse to Rs 20 lacs from Rs 10 lacs. Accordingly the amended and

ply and demand in the employment market.

improved benefits, if any, are recognised as cirrent year's expense as provided under paragraph 103, Ind AS 19,

ey,
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(Rupees in Crores)
Sensitivity Analysis:
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the

respeclive assumplions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Impact on Defined benefit obligation
Paiticiilars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% increase) - 0.08 - 0.07

Discount rate (1% decrease) 0.08 - 0.08 -
-|[Future salary growth (1% increase) 0.08 - 0.08 -

Future salary growth (1% decrease) - 0.08 - 0.07

Adtrition rate (1% increase) - 0.00 - 0.00

Attrition rate (1% decrease) 0.00 - 0.00 -

Mortality (increase in expected life time by 0.00

1 year)(CY Rs.1,000)

Mertality (increase in expected life time by 6.00

3 years)(CY Rs.2,000)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolalion of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

The average expected remaining lifetime of the plan members is 6 years ( March 31,2024-6.5 years) as at the valuation date

which represents the weighted average of the expected remaining lifelime of all plan participants.
The expected malurity analysis of the benefit payments of gratuity is as follows:

Particulars Less than a | Between 1 - 2 years | Between2-5 Over 5 years

year years Total
31-03-2025
Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 0.20 0.13 0.51 0.88 1.72
Total 0.20 0.13 0.51 0.88 1.72
31-03-2024
Defined benefit obligation (Graluity) 0.18 0.12 0.44 0.90 1.64
Total 0.18 0.12 0.44 0.90 1.64

The Company had deployed its investment assets in

an insurance plan which is invested in

market linked bonds. The

investment returns of the market-linked plan are sensitive to the changes in interest rates as compared with the investment
refurns from the smooth return investment plan. The liabilities' duration is not matched with the assets' duration.

The liabilities of the fund are funded by assefs. The company aims to maintain a close to full-funding position at each Balance
Sheet date. Future expected contributions are disclosad based on this principle.

The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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42 Disclosure on Accounting for revenue from customers in accordance with IND AS 115

Disaggregated revenue information
A Type of goods and service

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(a) Sale of Manufactured products 1,045.59 624,59

(b) Sale of services - -

¢) Other operaling revenues 9.09 8.65

Total Oprerating Revenue 1,054.68 633.24

In India 1,054.68 633.24

Outside India - -

B Timing of revenue recognition

For the Year ende81.03.2025

For the Year ende81.03.2024

Particulars Ata point of | Over a period | Ata point of | Over a period
time of time time of time
Sale of products and other operaling income 1,054.68 Nil 633.24 Nil
C Contract Balances
Particul As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
articulars 2025 2024

Contract Assets = 5
Contract Liabilities 0.91 0.21

D Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

For the Year

[ Forthe Year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabifties 0.21 0.09

E Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

[ Forthe Year | For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Revenue at contracted prices 1,054.68 633.24
Revenue from contract with custamers 1,054.68 633.24
Difference Nil Nil
F Unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligation
For the Year | For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Unsatisfied or partially salisfied performance obligation Nil il
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43 Related party disclosures
A. Names of Related parties and nature of relationship:
Hoiding Company Shankara Building Products
Limited Bangalore

Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private
Limited, Telangana

Century wells Roofing India Private
R Limited Kancheepuram

Fellow Subsidiaries Steel Network (Holdings) Ple Limited,
Singapore

Shankara Buildpro Limited, Bengaluru,
Karnataka,

Enlities where control exist Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips
Employees Gratuity Fund

Kay Managerial Personnel Mr. Sukumar Srinivas (Whole time Director)
Mr. C Ravikumar (Whale time Director)
Coimpanies over which Key Managerial Personnel can exercise |Shankara Holdings Private Limiled Bangalore
significant influence

B.|Transactions with Related Parties For the Year ended | For the Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Purchase of Goods (Refer note 1 below)
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private Limiled, Telangana - -
Centurywells Roofing india pvt Itd Kancheepuram 76.33 10.00
Shankara Building Producis Limited Bangaiors 321.62 180.82
Sale of Goods (Refer note 2 below)
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private Limited, Telangana - -
Shankara Building Products Limited, Bangalore 327.47 418.31
Cenlurywells Roofing india pvl itd Kanchespuram 594 0.85
Rent expenses
Shankara Building Products Limited Bangaiore 0.03 0.02
Taurus Value Sleel & Pipes Private Limited, Telangana 0.29 0.29
Rent Received
Sharkara Building Products Limited,Bangalare 0.03 0.03
Expenses on Corporate Guarantee
Shankara Building Products Limited, Bangalore(CY Rs.10,000) 0.00 0.46
Interest Paid
Shankara Building Products Limited Bangalare 0.01 0.21
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Privale Limited, Telangana 4.78 2.24

Purchase of Assets
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private Limiled, Telangana - -
Shankara Building Products Limited Bangalore - 0.04
Centurywells Roofing india pvt Itd Kancheepuram - -

Sale of Assets

Cenlurywells Roofing india pvt Itd Kancheapuram o 0.01
Shankara Building Products Limited Bangature - -
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private Limited, Telangana 0.03 -
Advances granted to /(repaid by) the company

Shankara Building Products Limited,Bangalare LIT 10.21
Shankara Building Products Limiled Bangalore (1.77) (10.21)
Rental Deposit- Given to

Shankara Building Products Limited Bangalore (CY Rs.45,000) - 0.00

Contribution to em ployee related trusts made during the
year
Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Employees Gratuity Fund 0.02 -

Guarantees and collaterals provided/(closad) by the
Company on behalf of;

Sharkara Building Products Limited,Bangalore 55.00 2




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Rupeesin Crores)

Notes

1 The purchases from related parties are in the ordinary course of business. Purchase transactions are based on
normal commercial terms and conditions and market rales.

2 The saies to related parties are in the ordinary course of business. Sales transactions are basad on prevailing
price lisls. The Company has not recorded any loss allowances for trade receivables from related parties.

C.|Amount due tof from related parties As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
Trade Receivables
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private Limited, Telangana(CY 0.00 1
RS.1600) '

Shankara Building Products Limited Bangaiore - -
Centurywells Roofing india pvt Itd Kancheepuram - -

Trade Payables
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Privale Limited, Telangana - -
Shankara Building Producls Limited,Bangalore 12.94 23.14

Centurywells Roofing india pvt Itd Kancheepuram 0.13 7.10
Rent payable

Shankara Building Products Limited,Bangalare(CY 0.00 0.00
Rs.27,540,PY 27,540)

Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Privale Limited, Telangana 0.03 0.03

Rent Receivables
Shankara Building Praducls Limited, Bangalore(CY RS.27,000, 0.00 0.00
PY Rs.27,000) . :

Interest Payahle
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Private Limited, Telangana - -

Shankara Building Products Limited Bangators 0.01 -
Loan Payable
Taurus Value Steel & Pipes Privale Limited, Telangana 66.38 69.13

Rent Deposit Receivable
Shankara Building Producls Limiled,Bangalore(CY Rs.45000,

PY Rs.45,000) 0.00 0.00
Advance received from holding company
Sharkara Building Products Limited, Bangaiore Nil Nil
Guarantees received from Holding Company
Shankara Building Products Ltd Bangalore 100.75 45.75
Guarantees received from directors

Managing Director 55.00 -

Terms and Conditions
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash

Guarantees from Holding company:
Guarantees provided to the lenders of the company are for availing working capital facilities from the lender
banks.

Guarantees from directors:

Personal guarantee given by the managing director to the company are for availing working capilal faciities
from the lender barks.




L& X403 vS'2s1 £8'LLL £8"1L1 1S00 pesjoLwe je paLiled sanliqe;] [eldueul) [ejo L

£8°L €8'L 99°L 99°L : seljiige]| |eidueuy JaulQ
210 2170 ) = saflliger] asea
S¥08 S¥08 2165 L1°8S sa|qeded spe.]
680 680 0¥t rAVR 47 sBumollog wuey poyg
02°69 02’69 8€°99 8€'09 sBumouiog wisy Buo

JS02 pasijiowe je painsesyy
sajliqen |elpueuly

0Lel 0LEL 10°LE LO°LE (o+g+v) sjesse [eoueuly [gjo]
2 5 - - ( 0) sso| pue yyoud yBnoay) snjea siey Je panseapy
(g) swoou aaisuayssdwos
- - - - Jayjo ybnouyy anjea Jjej je painsesyy

0L¢l 0LeL L0°LE L0°LE (v) 1500 pasiiouie je sjosse [eroueuy 830
LL'E VA L0’ L0'E Sjus|eninba yseo pue (Ses uey) 1ayjo seoueeq jueg
200 00 €00 €00 sjusjeninba yseo pue ysen
9L'69 9L'69 18°¢e L8'2E S8|geAla0al apel |
Lz L' 9Ll gL'l S}asse |ejoueuy Jayi0

3 = = = sueon

}S02 pasiuowe je painsespy
s}asse |ejoueui

an[ep anjep anjep anjep
aeq Buifizen ae4 Buifien
¥202-£0-1€ 1e sy §202-£0-L€ Je sy signaiued

Sjuawnisu| eroueuly Jo saliobejey ‘g
ZZ PUE 8. 910N Ul paquosap se '(S)ornuod asjuelient |epueul Buipnjoxa) sBumouniog uus) Hoys pue Buo] se pauysp siiqgag (I
‘leyden se pafieuew ale jey) Auedwos ay) 40 sanlasal pue |eydeo e sepnjoul Aunbg (|

06°0 9e°L oney buleas
LL'LL LLL8 Aunb3 jelo
20704 LE0LL 1920 18N
(zo0) (£0°0) sjuajeainbe yseo pue ysen :ssa
680 FA0 a4 sbumollog wiay pyoyg
6%°0 008 19ep wis) Buoj jo sanuniew usung
1289 2E€°09 sBumouiog wiz) Buo

P20Z-£0-1¢ 18 SY| SZ0Z-£0-L€ I8 SY SiE|noiueq
‘sjuajeninba

Yseod pue yses sso| sbumoiioq pue sueo| Buueaq Jsausul ‘sepnjoul 1gep 18N "Alinba |e101 0} papiap 1g9p JaU 81 yowym ‘ones Buuesb Buisn feydes sy siopuow Auedwon sy
S wnwiuiw e seliunyoddo jeyiew aimydes o) ‘suonisinboe aiBajels pue sypaloid uoisuedxs Bunadwoo
isBuowe uonesojie snopipnl syl slojluow A[asojo pue }s02 1sal9)u| aanpal ‘3|joud 1gap s Ajisianp o} saiunpoddo Butoueuyas pue Buoueuly Jayjo sJaplsuod Aueinbal Auedwon ay |

‘Sjuswwalinbay jeydes pasodu Ajjeuseixs Aue o) 108lgns jou s| Auedwon ay |
‘siseq paau uo Auedwoo Guipjoy woyj poddns [EIDUBUY 8} pue yueq wol Bumoliog wis) Loys Aq psjuswaddns suonesado sy woly pajessusb yses ‘ag 0] anunuoo 0} papadxa
SI pue ‘usaq sey Auedwod ayj jo Buipuny jo acinos [edipuud sy “suonyisinboe aifiejels pue |eydes Bupjiom ‘uoisuedxa s) puny o} Ajutew ale sjuswalinbai [eydeo s Auedwon ay |
juswebeuew ysu feydes "y
SjusWINIIsu| [eIoUBUIY bt
(sauosD wr saadny)
Sjuawajels [eloueuld ayj 0} ssjoN
PajwWIn sjeAlld sding g saqn] |29)S UOISIdald JRYSIA



‘S90UBApE pUE sBjqeA@oal aper) ay) woy Allediouud sesie ysu jipsio sAuedwon

v "S)SI LUONBNUSOUOD SE ||am SB SSaUIYLOM JIPaid JO UCRIouS)ap JO ¥SU 8y} pue jnejep
40 ¥sU Joa1Ip 8y} ‘ylog jo sassedwoous ysu Jipalg) ‘Auedwo) ay) o) $80] [eroueuy ul Buiynsal suopehiqo |2njoesuUeD S} U Hnejap |Im Apedisjunod e jey) YsU 8y} 0} Siajal ysu HpaIn
‘Juawabeuew ysu Jipaln

60702 0¥ 0LL sbuimolroq |ejo
680 c0'vy sBumolloq sjel buneol
02'69 8€'99 sBumousiog el paxid
¥202-€0-1€ Je SY| S202-20-L¢ e sy sie|naiJed

:sBumouiog sjel Buljeoy pue paxy s Auedwon au} jo dn-yeauq e saplroid a|qe) Bumoljoy auy L

'sbumolloq ajel

Buneoy pue paxy usamiaq xiw sjeudoidde ue Bulureiurew Aq Auedwog auy Aq pebeuew si ysu 9y "seadnu U pajeuiouap Ajjedioupd ase Auedwos ay) Jo sBumotiog ay) -ajel
Isauelul B|gelieA Ul sabueyo Joy Ajanisuss moj) yseo auy Buisn Ag painseaus si ysu ajel Isauau[ "sajed Jsausiul Bujeoy pue paxy yjoq Je pamoLIog a8 Spuny a3UIS YSUI S)el JSall
©} pasodxa si Auediuo) ay] “sajel jsalajul jaylew ) sabueyp Jo ssnesag Sjeniony [IM JUaLLINASUL [BIDUBUY B JO SMOJ) YSBD 91NN} J0 anjen ey au) Jey) Ysu ay) S| ysi sjel IEEIE V]
YSI 9)el Jsataiu|

‘uonoalip swes ay) ul anow syndul Jo ssoud iy pue spnpoud
1221s Jo saoud Buijes ay) se sejes yaxyew Buleasid uo paseq sjonpoud sy} sainooid Auedwod ayy Apepwig seoud joxlew Buljieasud je sjonpoud ay) jjes o) swie Auedwon sy |

"0)a sjonpoud Buipping Jayjo pue sadid [82}5'1109 1993 Jo saoud ay) ul suonenjany o) yoalgns alojasay)
st Auedwog ay) soud jexiew Bupeaaid ur Aueduwios Buipjoy wouyy se jjam se saed pay) woyy jaxew uado au} ul spnpoud Buipping Jaujo pue [9a)s sy} seseyoind Auedwon auy

'sjonpoud [93)s s}l Jo 3jes AU Woy suies Auedwoy sy Jey) anusaal ay) 20npal Aew s10j0B4 858y Jo Aue Ul seBueyd asianpy Umolb pue SuCKIpUoD siWouoos |euoibal pue |eqo|b
pue (sinduj [2ua1EW MEJ JO $1500 Bu) Buipnipul) ss02 uononpoud ‘puewsp pue Alddns se yans siojory Aq pasusnyul aq Aew ssoud asay | Auedwon au) Aq pjos sjanpoud [9a)s au)
Joy seoud aunuselep Ajjeisuab seolof jexiepy spnpoad Buip|ing Jayo pue |9a)s S 40 2jes 3y} 0} pajelas suonenjony aoud JO ysU J@xIBW AU} 0) pasodxa si anuansl sAuedwos ay |

Nsu eoud Ajipowiwion

'sajed jsaisjul pue saoud Aypowwon ‘serel abueyoxa Asusuno ublalo) ui sabueyo o0} psjeal sysli 0} sSBUISN] S} JO 85IN09 AlBUIPIO

ay) ul pasodxa s| Auedwod ay) ‘seoud jexiew sy Uy sabuelp Jo asneoaq SIEM2NY. |IIM JUSWNASU| [BRUBUY B JO SMOJ USED 21Ny JO SNjBA JIB) SU) JeU) YSU Sy} §1 XS Joxep
S 1 IBAl

ysu Apinbi -

pue 3su ypai) -

HSU 1B -

isuswngsul [eloueul sy woly Buisue sysu Bumolioy sy srebiniw o} swie sajoljod Juswabeuew ysu ay |

‘Auedwio) sy Aq peoey ysu syl 0} uoneal ul ylomawe.ly Juswsabeuew ysu ay) jo Aoenbape

24} sjenjena o} pseog ay) pue Juswabeueyy sy 0} uolewojUl B|geE! SpiAcid 0] salARDE sAuedwo 8y} pue suolipuos JaX3IEW BY} Ul sebueyD jPayal 0 AleinBal pamainal
ale swaysAs pue sepjod Juswabeuew ysiy ‘Aousiedsues PUE SS3UBIBME HSU SA0IdWI ‘SHWI| JIBY) pUB SYSH B8] JOJUOW 'SYSLI asay) Jsuiefie sjoluod Buddew pue Buikyuapi
‘sploysaiL ysu ajgejdeoce Bumes ‘sysy Jo uonenjeas pue uonesynuspl AjpLUY aInNsue 0} paysyqejss ase ssioljod juawabeuew ysu ay L ‘sewijed Juswebeuew ysu s Auedwon
ay) Buuoyuow pue Buidojenap pue siomsuweld Juswabeuep ysiy ey Bujassiano oy sioaa1g Jo pieog sp Aq paysijgelse sajwwo) uswsbeuep ysiy e sey Auedwoy ay |
Jusweabeuew ySU [eloueul

(saloin urseadny)
SJUBWD)e]S |BIoUBULH BY) 0} SAJON
PajWIT aleAld sdUIS '@ SBqNL (9918 UOISIDaId [RYSIA




[eIoUEUY JO soId Ajinjew ay) Buiyojew Aq pue ‘smo
Bujuieuew Aq ysu Apinby sefeueLw Auedwo? ayy -
yseo jusions sejelausb AuedwoD sy ‘suonisinboe 2162)21s Joj S [jam se Spasu |euone
Alpajoadxaun suolpuod sSaUISNG SJaUM UORENYS B Ul spun} pinbif jo ebepoys o} anp Bus)

1oL

1oL

09'8¢

0982

Jeak auo puofaq buuidxg -

ajey Bugeold

¥20g-£0-L€ Je sy

S202-€0-L¢ e sy

siejnoued

sjuawabuelle bupueuly

:pouad Burpodal sy jo pus sy e sanioe; Bumoiiog umespun Bumojjo) sy} 0] 559398 sey Auedwos ay |

Aupinby| epincid sBumolloq wiey o

*sal|igel| pue sjesse

I} Ysed [enjoe pue isedalo) Bupiojiuow Ajsnonuguoa Aq ‘sspiioe) Bumoliog aaiesal pue saljjioe; Bupjueq ‘sanlasal ajenbape
Us pue sjusjeainbs ysea pue ysed sjqejienk ay} ypm Jayyabio) Yoium ‘suonesedo 10} MO}
1ado wue] Hoys Joj Yjoq spuny salinbai Auedwog sy ‘Bupueuy Buuinbai pue Qleiolalap
Je s)500 fuoueuy ybjy Areuipioelixs Jo ssansip [eloueuy JO ysi au) 0} s1a4a1 s Alpinbi

jJuswabeuew ysu b_E_._E,._

9.°69 020 450 v0°0 L0 vL Y 8¥'¥9 (Juauliedwr Jo 39U} So|qEAIe09] GPEl) JO Junowe buiAe)
(o) (oz0) (€0°0) (1L0°0) (00°0) s$3|qeAleoal apel) - (Uojsincld a0ueMOlje SSOT) S8SS0] JIpaID pajoadxg
0004 o¥'0 SL'0 S0°0 gL0 Y.y 8¥ 9 sajqenladal apel] - junowe fuikied ssolg
1elo L sieah ¢ [sueal g-z | sieahz-| 1eak syjuow anq JoN
uey} aiop - syjuow g g ueyy ssa
Buieby
yoseoidde payiduis Jepun sa|qeaiasel apex 10} 550] JIpoID pajoadxgy
P202-€0-1¢ Pdpus Jes)
18°CE 0Z°0 L0°0 09°0 69°0 S0 [ (JusuLITEdUI 3O J5U) SS[GEATe09d apel) Jo Junowe buriireg
(g0 (0z0) (z0'0) (510 (co°0) S9|qeAi90al aped) - (Uoisinold 80UBMO|B SSOT) $8SS0| )IpaId pajoadxg
gl'ee or'0 60°0 GL0 690 S1°0 oL'Le Sa|qeAladal apel] - junowe Hulhues ssoln
2101 sieafig |sieafg-z | sieafg-) 1eaf syjuow ang joN
uey) aiop |- Stjjuow g g uey) ssa
Buleby

yoeoidde payijduis Japun se|qeaiaoal aped) 1o) Sso| 1paio paydadxy

§20Z-£0-L€ papus iea)

“SBIqEAIZORI 8NPISAOD JO UOYDSII00 Joj UK} s uooe atendoldds pue paiojuow Apenbias aie sajqeamos) apes
fuipuelsino ey "Ysu 11paio 1o uoleUSOUD JUBILIUBIS OU LM SEale [EaIydelBosb PUE S3LISNPUl 8SIBAIP SS0.0 pesids SI9W0isnd Jo Jaquunu abie| e 4o ISISUOD $3|qeAIS0a] pEl |

"palojiuow Apenfis) ale sajqentanal Jowoysno Bulpuelsing ‘paploap aJe swua)
JIpaI2 3 JIWI| JIp2.0 JeY) U0 pased "2} ssaUIsng pejdadxs ‘uolendal JeyewW ‘SUDHIPUDD JILOUEDS /ssauisng ‘souewliopad jsed ‘Uojlisod [e1oUBUY UO pPaseq PaSSISSE S| JBLI0SND
e jo Ayjenb ypauD JuswaBeuBLW XS JIPaId 1BW0)SND 0} Bunear joguod pue sainpasoid ‘Aaijod Paysiiqe)sa o} Joafqns pue Auedwoo ayy Aq Ajjenuss pabeuew S1YSL JIpaJo JaWwosny
1Sa]|qeAladal spel ]

(saio1n Ul ssadny)
SjudLIsie}g [BIDUBULY 3y} 0} S810N
PajILI 8)eAld sdLIS '8 Saqgn L |99)S UOISIDaId [RUSIA




199p wiue) Buo| Jo senunew juaing Bupnpu) ,

¥S'ZS1 >, 12789 £8°€8 Sanliiqel] jeroueuly [ejo |
£€8°1 - = £8°L Saljiqe]| [eroueuly BWO
L10 - = 210 safljiqel ssean
Sv'08 = - S¥'08 sa|qeded apei|
680 - - 680 sBumollog wis) yoyg
02'69 - 1489 6%°0 « SBumounog wiey Buon
Sanliiqel| jejoueury
0L¢l - 8Ll [A: g4 S}OSSE |eloueuly |ejo |
LLe - e [WArd sjualeainba Used pue yses Uelj) JaLjo Sedue|eq suey
200 2 - 200 syusjeanba yseo pue ysen
9/'69 " - 9,69 $9|geAIa09] 9pel ]
Lel - 8Ll €00 Sjosse [eloueul JBYIO
- - - - SUEO"
s}asse [eloueury

|elo1 sieafg < sieak g-| 1ealk | > siejnaiped
Y202 Udiel 1sL¢ Je se ainsodxa Aipinbi
1gap wigy 6uo] jo sanpumew yuauno Buipnjour ,
£8°LLL = 8€°09 SPLLL so Bll [eroueuy jejo |
991 - = 99'L SEICENERENENTRENTS)
= - - & Higer] sasean
LL°BS " = LL6S sajqeded apes
c0'vr @ = 20k sBumoliog wie) oy
8€'99 E 8£°09 009 « sBumowiog wis) BuoT
Salliqel] [efoueuly
Lo'LE - Li'L 06°G€ S}9Sse [eloueull [ejo |
L0'e < - L0°¢ sjusjeAlinba Useo pue USED UBy) Jayjo EERREEREET ]
€00 = * €00 sjus(eainba ysea pue ysen
L8¢e o & 18°ZE Sa|geAlaoal apel]
9Lk L S0°0 S]9sse [elduUBUL JBUIO
% = = = SuBOT
S}a8sse [eloueul

jelol sieaf g < sieaf g-| eak | > sie|naiped

SZ0Z YyaIep Is1.¢ ye se ainsodxa Aipinbiq

‘Ked o) pannbal aq Aew Auedwon 3y} UdIym Uo a1ep Jsallles ay} uo

paseq si Ajunjew [emoenuod ay | “porad fupuodas ay) jo pus au) Je SBAIND Sjel 1S8UB)UI WOL PBALSP S junowe pajunoasipun auj ‘ajel Buieo| ale SMOY JSaIS)UI JBY) JUSIXS BU) O

"smoj} Yseo [ediound pue Jsaisjul Ljog spnjaul Sa|qe)
Y1 “Aed o) paiinbal aq Ued AuedLioD aul YoIym Ue a)ep ISa1lIeS U} U paseq Saljiqel] [2IDUBLL J0 SMOY 4sed pajunoosipun a8y} uo paseq dn umelp uaaq aABY sajqe) 8y | ‘S}losse
[BloUBUY BAREALSP-LIOU S| pUB spoliad juswAedal paaiBe yim seniiqe) [eipuBul SARBALEP-UOU )1 10} AILINjEW [EMIBAUOD Buiurews) s Auedwop suy lejep seige} Bumojjoy ay |

(saiotn ui saadny)
SJUBLLIBIL]S [RIDUBUILY B} 0} SIION
pajiwi s1eAld sdiis @ seqn L [991S UoISIoald [BYSIA



“3INjBU WIS} LoYS Jidy) 0} 8np ‘Sanjen Jiej JIdy) Se aLUes ay) 8q 0} PaJapisucd aie ‘3|qe} SA0]e SUj Ul pasojosIp ssou U
1O SaNIJIGEl| PUB SI9SSE [BIOUBUY JAUJ0 PUB S3JUB[E] jUBQ] JBYJ0 ‘sjudjeninba Ysed pue ysed ‘sojqeAed apeJ) ‘sa|geA202) aped} ‘sBumoiiog Wisl-uoys jo sjunowe Buikiies sy

7 & e 5251 = = = £8°LLL senijiqel| [elouBul [BJOL
€81 99’ saljjiqel] [epueuy JIBUI0
LL0 = salljigel] asea’
S¥'08 LL'6S sajqeled apeu|
68°0 20y sBumouog wis) yoys
0269 - 8c£'99 . sbumouwuog wia) Buo
sanljiqel| |eloueuly
120 * i 0L'EL €070 = % 10°2¢ s}asse |eloueuy |BjoL
VEF 10¢ sjusjeAinba Used pue ysed UeY) Jayjo saouejeq jueg
200 €00 sjuajeainbs yseo pue ysen
9,69 18°2¢ $3|geAl22al spel|
Leo Ak £0°0 9Ll sjasse |eloueuly JaYl0
o - sueo’
S]aSSE [elouBuly
¢ [9ADT Z [9na | [eAaT anjep ECE] AR NECR] anjep
anjenied Buifuen anjeplled Buifiie sig|noiped

¥202-€0-L€ 18 SY

S202-£0-1¢ 1B SY

ajqeded aq 10U [M JUNOLWE UB LINS Jey) jou uey) A|3x1| a1ow si )i Jey} sispisuod Auedwon ay) ‘pouad Buipod
I} U} Jo} APISS O} PadJoy 2q PN Auedwo) By} JUNOWE Wnwixew au) sjuasaidal (A)EF'ON SION Ul p3pnp
(saloun ul ssadny)

(ZzZ pue g| 2j0u Jajoy) "paljapuauns e

SJUSWINJISUI [BIDUBULS JO BINSO|ISIP 3SIM [9AD7]

sanioe) Bupjueq asaL) 2ouo Auediue?) 2y} 0} SaluNoas ay) uina) o} uofebijqo ue si aisy ] “Auedwod au 0} papualxa sanlioe)
Bupjueq ay) 10} SlusLaINbal [BISI0D UIEHSD [yINn) O} J3PIO Ul Sjudjeanbs yseod pue Used pue SJUSWISaAU] Wis} Hoys ‘salq

eAl92a) aped} sy jo ped pabperd sey Auedwod syl
|elajefjod

uawabuele sy} Japun

a1 8} JO pus ay) Je uoneoadxa ay) uo paseg Junowe pasjuesent
ui Auedwoa Buipjoy 1o jeyag uo uaalb sesjuelenb jo junowe ay|

sjuswWwalels [eloueUl 3Y) 0] S9JON

paywr 8jeALd sduIS B S8qn | (991 UOISIdald [BYSIA




(sauoup uy seadny)

“USJp|iYo puE Uswiom pauopuede Bulieyiigeyas ‘Aiigeuielsns JUBLILOIIALS ‘UOHEONPS ‘INJONISELUI SIEOU)ESH ~SSHIAIDY ¥SD jo amnjeN
¥E ON BJON Ul sasuadxa JayjQ ul papnpoul si pied junowy

- - 900 900 anoge () uey) Jayjo asodind uQ (q
- - - - sjasse Aue jo uolisinboe 7 uoioniisuo) (e
iieioys a1inoul DA

sieak Jeak ayj jo pua m._ﬂ P awm 8yj Joj Juads
snoinaid ay) e [jejoys e wrumoE aq o} paiinbau e
jo [ejo| ik v Junowy

¥Z02-£0-L€ papua Jea)

- - 800 800 anoge (&) ueyy Jayjo asodind UQ (q
- - - - sjasse Aue jo uonisinboe ; uononisuo?) (e
lilentous aLnaul A

sieal Jeak ayj jo pus w._ﬂ R ayj Joj Juads
snoinaid a8y} je ||ejuoys . amu iy 8q 0} paiinbai SeeERd
J0 ej01 s Junowny

SZ0Z-£0-1€ papus Jea)
-esk o Buunp Juads Junowy (g

(s21010 900 "sy ek snoinaid ) $81010 gO°0'SY - JESA au) Buunp Auedwo) Aq yuads aqg o} pannbai unowe ssolg) (e

Ajnqisuodsau jeoos ejesodion s

SJUBWale]S [BIDUBUIY BY] 0] SBJON
pajwi ajeAld sduis g Saqn | [991S UoISIDald [BYSIA



Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

47 Ratios as per the Schedule Ill requirements

A.Current ratio=Current assset / Current liability.

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Current assets 214.95 190.40
Current Liablities 112.49 84.88
Ratio (times) 1.91 2.24
% change from previous year -14.82

Reason for change more than 25%: Not applicable

B.Net Debt-Equity Ratio =Net debt / total equity

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Net Debt (refer note (i) below) 110.38 70.06
Equity 81.11 i
Ratio (times) 1.36 0.90
‘% change from previous year 50.94

Note

Reason for change more than 25%: Increase in short term borrowings

(i) Net debt = Long term borrowings + Short term borrowings - Cash and cash equivalents

repayment of long term loan made during the year.

C. Debt service coverage ratio=Earnings available for debt service / Interest expense and principal

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Earnings available for debt services (refer note (i)

below) 20.21 14.46
Interest + Principal Repayments of long term loans 14.31 4.14
made during the period excluding prepayment

Ratio (times) 1.41 3.50
% change from previous year (59.65)

Note

ammortisation

(i) Earnings available for debt service = Earnings before interest,tax, exceptional items,depreciation and

Reason for change more than 25%: Increase in Interest cost and principal repayments of long term loans

D.Return on equity ratio=Net profit after tax / average equity

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Net profit after tax 3.40 4.84
Average shareholders equity (refer note (i) below) 79.41 75.28
Ratios(percentage) 4.28% 6.43%
% change from previous year (33.35)

Note

respective year) divided by 2

Reason for change more than 25%: Due to decrease in net profit

(i) Average shareholders equity = (Total equity as at beginning of respective year + total equity as at end of

E.Inventory turnover ratio= Cost of goods sold / average inventory

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Cost of goods sold (refer note (i) below) 1,011.49 601.70
Average inventory (refer note (i) below) 115.67 67.97
Ratio (times) 8.74 8.85
% change from previous year (1.22)

Note

respective year) divided by 2
Reason for change more than 25%: Not applicable

(i) Cost of goods sold of respective year = Cost materials consumed + purchases + Changes in inventory
(ii) Average inventory = (Total inventory as at beginning of respective year + total inventory as at end of




F.Trade receivables turnover ratio = Sales / Average trade receivables

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars
Turnover (refer note (i) below) 1,244.52 747.22
Average trade receivables (refer note (ii) below) 51.29 52.48
Ratio(times) 2427 14.24
% change from previous year 70.43

Note
(i) Turnover = Revenue from operations (including GST)

(i) Average trade receivables = (Total trade receivables as at beginning of respective year + total trade

receivables as at end of respective year) divided by 2

Reason for change more than 25%: Increase in turnover

G.Trade payables turnover ratio = Purchases / Average trade payables

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars
Purchases 1,250.03 766.10
Average trade payables (refer note (i) below) 70.11 58.60
Ratio(times) 17.83 13.07
% change from previous year 36.38
Note

(i) Average trade payables = (Total Trade Payables as at beginning of respective year + Total Trade Payables

as at end of respective year) divided by 2

Reason for change more than 25%: Increase in Purchases

H.Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from operations / Working capital

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Revenue from operations 1,054 .68 633.24
Working capital 102.46 105.52
Ratios (times) 10.29 6.00
% change from previous year 7153

Note

Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities
Reason for change more than 25%: Increase in turnover

I.Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax / Revenue from operations

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

Net profit after tax 3.40 4.84
Revenue from operations 1,054.68 633.24
Ratios(percentage) 0.32% 0.76%
‘% change from previous year (57.79)

Reason for change more than 25%: Due to decrease in net profit

J.Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) / Capital employed

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
EBIT (refer note (i) below) 16.13 10.35
Capital employed (refer note (i) below) 191.49 147.77
Ratios(percentage) 8.43% 7.00%
% change from previous year 20.34

Note

(i) EBIT = Profit before taxes + finance cost

(i) Capital employed = Total equity + Net debt
Reason for change more than 25%: Not applicable

K.Return on investment = Income generated from investments / average investments

No investment was made by the Company. Hence this ratio is not applicable.




Vishal Precision Steel Tubes & Strips Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
(Rupees in Crores)

48 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding Benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the Rules made there under.

49 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary

50 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

51 The Company has not operated in any crypto currency or Virtual Currency transactions

52 There are no transactions with the Companies whose name are struck off under Section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31-03-2025.

53 During the year the Company has not disclosed or surrendered, any income other than the income
recoginsed in the books of accounts in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961.

54 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

55 No scheme of arrangement has been approved by the competent authority in terms of Section 230 to 237
of the Companies Act, 2013

56 The Company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loan to any promoters, Directors, KMPs
and the related parties (As per Companies Act, 2013) , which are repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayments

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date
for Vasanth & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

mr.nar g Sukymar Sripi C%ikumar
Partner Diregtor Director
Membership No.510064 DIN: 01668064 DIN: 01247347

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: 8th May 2025 Date: 8th May 2025




